

PERMIT NO.: V-24-0838

# **DRAFT TITLE V OPERATING PERMIT**

**ISSUED BY** 

# KNOX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT

140 DAMERON AVENUE, SUITE 242 KNOXVILLE, TN 37917

| ISSUED TO: Flo   | wers Baking Co. of Knoxville, LLC | С              |               |            |                            |  |
|--|-----------------------------------|----------------|---------------|------------|----------------------------|--|
| FACILITY ADDRES  | S: 3100 NW Park Drive, Knox       | ville TN 37921 |               |            |                            |  |
| RESPONSIBLE C  | FFICAL                            |                |               |            |                            |  |
| NAME: Chad H   | arland                            | TITLE:         | Plant Manager | _ PHONE:   | (865) 362-7568             |  |
| MAILING ADDRES   | S: 3100 NW Park Drive, Knox       | ville TN 37921 |               |            |                            |  |
| PERMIT CONTA   | CT FOR FACILITY                   |                |               |            |                            |  |
| NAME: Josh M   | ayer                              | TITLE:         | ESS Manager   | _ PHONE:   | (865) 362-7568             |  |
| MAILING ADDRES   | S: 3100 NW Park Drive, Knox       | ville TN 37921 |               |            | _                          |  |
| THIS PERMIT IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL REGULATIONS; PUBLIC CHAPTER NO. 367 AMENDED; PRIVATE CHAPTER NO. 37; AND SECTION 25 OF THE KNOX COUNTY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL REGULATIONS. THIS PERMIT FULFILLS THE REQUIREMENTS OF TITLE V OF THE FEDERAL CLEAN AIR ACT AND THE FEDERAL REGULATIONS PROMULGATED THEREUNDER AT 40 CFR PART 70. THE PERMITTEE HAS BEEN GRANTED PERMISSION TO OPERATE AN AIR CONTAMINANT SOURCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND MONTORING REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH HEREIN. |                                   |                |               |            |                            |  |
| APPLICATION AND TO ANY CONDITIONS NOTED.   |                                   |                |               |            |                            |  |
| THIS PERMIT MAY BE REVOKED AT ANY TIME A VIOLATION OF THE KNOX COUNTY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL REGULATIONS OR THE TENNESSEE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL REGULATIONS, WHICHEVER IS APPLICABLE, OCCURS.   |                                   |                |               |            |                            |  |
| DATE ISSUED:   |                                   | А              | pproved By:   |            |                            |  |
| RENEWAL APPLIC   | ATION DEADLINE:                   |                | _             |            | JUSTIN MAYER DEPARTMENT OF |  |
| EVDIDATION DAT   | <b>:</b> .                        |                |               | AIR QUALIT | Y MANAGEMENT               |  |

### PERMIT NO. V-24-0838

## **Contents**

| Section A. General Permit Conditions:   | 1  |
|---|----|
| A1. Definitions   | 1  |
| A2. Visible Emissions   |    |
| A3. Non-process Particulate Matter and Sulfur Oxide Emissions                       |    |
| A4. Process Particulate Matter and Sulfur Oxide Emissions                           |    |
| A5. Non-process Gaseous Emissions   |    |
| A6. Process Gaseous Emissions   |    |
| A7. Fugitive Dust   |    |
| A8. New Source Review   |    |
| A9. Permit Renewal and Expiration   |    |
| A10. Duty to Supplement and Correct Application                                     |    |
| A11. Recordkeeping Requirements   |    |
| A12. Retention of Records   |    |
| A13. Reporting Requirements   |    |
| A14. Severability Clause  |    |
| A15. Duty to Comply   |    |
| A16. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense                                  |    |
| A17. Modification, Revocation, etc for Cause  |    |
| A18. No Property Rights   |    |
| A19. Duty to Provide Information  |    |
| A20. Payment of Fees  |    |
| A21. Emissions Trading  |    |
| A22. Federally-enforceable Requirements   |    |
| A23. Certification of All Documents (including reports)                             |    |
| A24. Inspection and Entry   |    |
| A25. Compliance Certification   |    |
| A26. Emergency Provisions   |    |
| A27. Reopening for Cause  |    |
| A28. Section 502(b)(10) Changes   |    |
| A29. Off-permit Changes and Prohibitions  |    |
| A30. Recordkeeping Data Entry Requirements  |    |
| A31. Asbestos   |    |
| A32. 112(r)   | 5  |
| A33. Stratospheric Ozone and Climate Protection                                     | 5  |
| Section B. Facility Permit Conditions:  | 6  |
| ·   |    |
| B1. Fee Payment: Actual Emissions Basis   | 6  |
| B2. Emission Limits   |    |
| B3. Operating Restrictions  |    |
| B4. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements                                       |    |
| B5. Reporting Requirements  |    |
| B6. Testing Requirements  |    |
| B7. Miscellaneous Requirements  | 8  |
| Section C. Emission Group 001 (Bread and Bun Baking Operations) Specific Conditions | 9  |
|   |    |
| C1. Emission Limits   |    |
| C2. Operating Restrictions  |    |
| C3. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements                                       |    |
| C4. Reporting Requirements  |    |
| C5. Testing Requirements  |    |
| C6. Miscellaneous Requirements  |    |
| Section D. Emission Group 002 (Flour Storage Silos) Specific Conditions             | 11 |
| D1. Emission Limits   | 11 |

### PERMIT NO. V-24-0838

| D2. Operating Restrictions  | 11 |
|---|----|
| D2. Operating Restrictions D3. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements        | 11 |
| D/J. Reporting Requirements   | 11 |
| D5. Testing Requirements  | 11 |
| D6. Miscellaneous Requirements  | 11 |
| Section E. Emission Group 003 (Natural Gas/Propane Boilers) Specific Conditions |    |
| D1. Emission Limits   | 12 |
| D2. Operating Restrictions  | 12 |
| D3. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements                                   | 12 |
| D4. Reporting Requirements  | 12 |
| D5. Testing Requirements  | 12 |
| D6. Miscellaneous Requirements  | 12 |
| ATTACHMENT A: Insignificant Activities  | 13 |

### **Section A. General Permit Conditions:**

#### A1. Definitions

The terms not otherwise defined in this permit shall have the meanings assigned to them in the referenced regulations.

#### A2. Visible Emissions

The permittee shall not cause, suffer, allow, or permit discharge from any single source visible emissions of an opacity in excess of the standards set forth in the Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 17.0. If a source is subject to any additional opacity standards, the most stringent standard shall be taken as the emission limit. (KCAQMR Section 17.0)

### A3. Non-process Particulate Matter and Sulfur Oxide Emissions

The permittee shall not cause, suffer, allow, or permit emissions of particulate matter and sulfur oxide from non-process sources in excess of the standards set forth in the Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 18.0. If a non-process source is subject to any additional particulate matter or sulfur oxide standards, the most stringent standard shall be taken as the emission limit. (KCAQMR Sections 18.2 and 18.4)

### A4. Process Particulate Matter and Sulfur Oxide Emissions

The permittee shall not cause, suffer, allow, or permit emissions of particulate matter and sulfur oxide from process sources in excess of the standards set forth in the Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 19.0. If a process source is subject to any additional particulate matter or sulfur oxide standards, the most stringent standard shall be taken as the emission limit. (KCAQMR Sections 19.2, 19.4, and 19.6)

#### A5. Non-process Gaseous Emissions

The permittee shall install and utilize the best equipment and technology currently available for controlling gaseous emissions from non-process sources. (KCAQMR Section 18.3)

#### **A6. Process Gaseous Emissions**

The permittee shall install and utilize the best equipment and technology currently available for controlling gaseous emissions from process sources. (KCAQMR Section 19.3)

### A7. Fugitive Dust

- (a) The permittee shall not cause, suffer, allow, or permit any materials to be handled, transported, or stored; or a building, its appurtenances, or a road to be used, constructed, altered, repaired, or demolished without taking reasonable precautions to prevent particulate matter from becoming airborne.
- (b) The permittee shall not cause, suffer, allow, or permit fugitive dust to be emitted in such a manner to exceed five (5) minutes per hour, or twenty (20) minutes per day, as to produce a visible emission beyond the property line of the property on which the emission originates.

(KCAQMR Section 22.0)

#### **A8. New Source Review**

The permittee shall not begin the construction of a new source or make modifications to an existing source that is required to be reviewed under Department regulations without first receiving an approval or permit under such provisions. (KCAQMR Sections 25.1, 25.70-G, 41.2, and 45.2)

### A9. Permit Renewal and Expiration

For the purposes of permit renewal, a timely application is one that is submitted at least six months prior to the date of permit expiration, or such other longer time as may be approved by the Administrator that ensures that the term of the permit will not expire before the permit is renewed. In no event shall this time be greater than 18 months. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-E.1.a(3))

### A10. Duty to Supplement and Correct Application

Any applicant who fails to submit any relevant facts or who has submitted incorrect information in a permit application shall, upon becoming aware of such failure or incorrect submittal, promptly submit such supplementary facts or corrected

#### **DRAFT PERMIT NO. V-24-0838**

information. In addition, an applicant shall provide additional information as necessary to address any requirements that become applicable to the source after the date it filed a complete application but prior to release of a draft permit. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-E.2)

### **A11. Recordkeeping Requirements**

Where applicable, the permittee must maintain records of required monitoring information that include the following:

- (a) The date, place as defined in the permit, and time of sampling or measurements;
- (b) The date(s) analyses were performed;
- (c) The company or entity that performed the analyses;
- (d) The analytical techniques or methods used;
- (e) The results of such analyses; and
- (f) The operating conditions as existing at the time of sampling or measurement.

(KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.c(2)(a))

#### A12. Retention of Records

The permittee must retain records of all required monitoring data and support information for a period of at least 5 years from the date of monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip-chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports required by the permit. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.c(2)(b))

### **A13. Reporting Requirements**

The permittee must:

- (a) Submit reports of any required monitoring at least every six months. All instances of deviations from permit requirements must be clearly identified in such reports. All required reports must contain a certification by a responsible official that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, that the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete.
- (b) Promptly report deviation from permit requirements, including those attributed to malfunction of equipment as specified in the Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 34.0, the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventative measures taken. The term "prompt" is defined to be within 24 hours of when the permit deviation occurs.

(KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.c(3))

### A14. Severability Clause

If any part of this permit is declared invalid, the remainder of this permit shall remain in effect and enforceable. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.e)

### A15. Duty to Comply

The permittee must comply with all conditions of the Part 70 permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the Act and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.f(1))

### A16. Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense

It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.f(2))

### A17. Modification, Revocation, etc for Cause

The permit may be modified, revoked, reopened, and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filling of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.f(3))

### **A18.** No Property Rights

This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.f(4))

### A19. Duty to Provide Information

The permittee shall furnish the Department, within reasonable time, any information that the Department may request in writing to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating the permit or to determine compliance with the permit. Upon request, the permittee shall also furnish to the Department copies of records required to be kept by the permit. For information claimed to be confidential, the permittee may furnish such records directly to the Director along with a claim of confidentiality. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.f(5))

#### A20. Payment of Fees

The source must pay fees to the Knox County Department of Air Quality Management consistent with the approved fee schedule. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.g)

### **A21. Emissions Trading**

No permit revision shall be required, under any approved economic incentives, marketable permits, emission trading and other similar programs or processes for change that are provided for in the permit. Such provisions must meet the requirements of 40 CFR 70.4(b)(12)(i) and (iii). (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.h)

### A22. Federally-enforceable Requirements

All terms and conditions in a Part 70 permit, including any provisions designed to limit a source's potential to emit, are enforceable by the Administrator and citizens under the Act. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.2.a)

### A23. Certification of All Documents (including reports)

Any document (including reports) required by a Part 70 permit shall contain a certification by a responsible official that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, that the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.3.a)

#### A24. Inspection and Entry

Upon presentation of credentials and other documents as may be required by law, the permittee shall allow the Director or an authorized representative to perform the following:

- (a) Enter upon the permittee's premises where a Part 70 source is located or emission-related activity is conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit;
- (b) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of the permit;
- (c) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and air pollution control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and
- (d) As authorized by the Act, sample or monitor at reasonable times substances or parameters for the purpose of assuring compliance with the permit or applicable requirements.

(KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.3.b)

### A25. Compliance Certification

Compliance certifications shall be submitted to the Department and EPA annually. The compliance certifications shall include the following:

- (a) The identification of each term or condition of the permit that is the basis of the certification;
- (b) The compliance status;
- (c) Whether compliance was continuous or intermittent;
- (d) The method(s) used for determining the compliance status of the source, currently and over the reporting period consistent with the required monitoring; and
- (e) Such other facts as the Department may require to determine the compliance status of the source.

(KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.3.e(3))

#### **A26. Emergency Provisions**

- (a) Definition. An "emergency" means any situation arising from sudden and reasonably unforeseeable events beyond the control of the source, including acts of God, which situation requires immediate corrective action to restore normal operation, and that causes the source to exceed a technology-based emission limitation under the permit, due to unavoidable increases in emissions attributable to the emergency. An emergency shall not include noncompliance to the extent caused by improperly designed equipment, lack of preventative maintenance, careless or improper operation, or operator error.
- (b) Effect of an emergency. An emergency constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with such technology-based emission limitations if the conditions of paragraph 3 of this permit condition are met.
- (c) The affirmative defense of emergency shall be demonstrated through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:
  - (1) An emergency occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the emergency;
  - (2) The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated;
  - (3) During the period of the emergency the permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize levels of emissions that exceeded the emission standards, or other requirements in the permit; and
  - (4) The permittee immediately notified the Department by phone or fax and submitted written notice of the emergency to the Department within 2 working days of the time when emission limitations were exceeded due to the emergency. This notice fulfills the requirement of permit condition A11(b). This notice must contain a description of the emergency, any steps taken to mitigate emissions, and corrective actions taken.
- (d) In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an emergency has the burden of proof.
- (e) This provision is in addition to any emergency or upset provision contained in any applicable requirement.

(KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.7)

### A27. Reopening for Cause

A permit shall be reopened and revised under any of the following circumstances:

- (a) Additional applicable requirements under the Act become applicable to a major Part 70 source with a remaining permit term of 3 or more years. Such a reopening shall be completed not later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement. No such reopening is required if the effective date of the requirement is later than the date on which the permit is due to expire, unless the original permit or any of its terms and conditions has been extended by an EPA approved program pursuant to the Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 25.70-M.
- (b) The Department or EPA determines that the permit contains a material mistake or that inaccurate statements were made in establishing the emissions standards or other terms or conditions of the permit.
- (c) The Administrator or the Department determines that the permit must be revised or revoked to assure compliance with the applicable requirements.

(KCAQMR Section 25.70-G.6.a)

### A28. Section 502(b)(10) Changes

The Department shall allow permitted sources to make Section 502(b)(10) changes without requiring a permit revision if the changes are not modifications under any provision of Title I of the Act and the changes do not exceed the emissions allowable under the permit (whether expressed therein as a rate of emissions or in terms of total emissions). The facility shall provide the Administrator and the Department with written notification 21 days in advance of the proposed changes. The written notification shall include a brief description of the change within the permitted facility, the date on which the change will occur, any change in emissions, and any permit term or condition that is no longer applicable as a result of the change. The source, Department, and EPA shall attach each such notice to their copy of the relevant permit. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-N)

### A29. Off-permit Changes and Prohibitions

The Department will allow changes that are not addressed or prohibited by the permit, other than those described in Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 25.70-P, to be made without a permit revision providing they meet the following requirements:

- (a) Each such change shall meet all applicable requirements and shall not violate any existing permit term or condition.
- (b) Sources must contemporaneous written notice to the Department and EPA of each such changes, except for changes that qualify as insignificant under the provisions adopted pursuant to Knox County Air Quality Management Regulations Section 25.70-E.3. Such written notice shall describe each such change, including the date, any change in emissions emitted, and any applicable requirements that would apply as a result of the change.
- (c) The permittee shall keep a record describing changes made at the source that result in emissions of a regulated air pollutant subject to an applicable requirement, but not otherwise regulated under the permit, and the emissions resulting from those changes.
- (d) Sources are prohibited from making, without a permit revision, changes that are not addressed or prohibited by the Part 70 permit, if such changes are subject to any requirements under Title IV of the Act or are modifications under any provision of Title I of the Act.

(KCAQMR Sections 25.70-O and P)

### A30. Recordkeeping Data Entry Requirements

- (a) For monthly recordkeeping, all data, including the results of all calculations, must be entered into the record no later than thirty (30) days from the end of the month for which the data is required.
- (b) For weekly recordkeeping, all data, including the results of all calculations, must be entered into the record no later than seven (7) days from the end of the week for which the data is required.
- (c) For daily recordkeeping, all data, including the results of all calculations, must be entered into the log no later than seven (7) days from the end of the day for which the data is required.

(KCAQMR Section 26.5-B)

#### A31. Asbestos

The permittee shall comply with 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M (asbestos NESHAP) when conducting any renovation or demolition at the facility. (KCAQMR Section 35.2.1-M)

#### A32. 112(r)

The permittee shall comply with the requirement to submit to the Administrator or designated State Agency a risk management plan, including a registration that reflects all covered processes, by June 21, 1999, if the permittee's facility is required pursuant to 40 CFR, 68, to submit such a plan.

### A33. Stratospheric Ozone and Climate Protection

The permittee shall comply with the standards for recycling and emissions reduction as provided in 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F.

### **Section B. Facility Permit Conditions:**

Flowers Baking Co. of Knoxville, LLC is a commercial bakery facility. Flowers Baking Co. of Knoxville, LLC consists of one Bread Oven, which is rated at 4.985 MMBtu/hr and one Bun Oven, rated at 4.345 MMBtu/hr. Baking at this facility is a highly mechanized process.

### **B1. Fee Payment: Actual Emissions Basis**

### FEE EMISSION SUMMARY TABLE FOR MAJOR SOURCE V-0533

| REGULATED POLLUTANTS           | ACTUAL EMISSIONS<br>(tons per AAP) | COMMENTS                     |
|--------------------------------|------------------------------------|------------------------------|
| PM <sub>10</sub>               | AEAR                               | Includes all PM HAP          |
| SO <sub>2</sub>                | AEAR                               |                              |
| NOx                            | AEAR                               |                              |
| VOC                            | AEAR                               | Includes all VOC HAP         |
| Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP) | AEAR                               | Excluding PM HAP and VOC HAP |

### **NOTES**

- AAP The Annual Accounting Period (AAP) is a twelve (12) consecutive month period that begins January 1 and ends
  December 31 of each year. The present Annual Accounting Period began January 1, 2024 and ends December
  31, 2024. The next Annual Accounting Period begins January 1, 2025 and ends December 31, 2025.
- **N/A N/A** indicates that no emissions are specified for fee computation.
- AEAR indicates that an Actual Emissions Analysis is Required to determine the actual emissions of each regulated pollutant (Particulate Matter, SO<sub>2</sub>, NO<sub>x</sub> and VOC).

### **END NOTES**

### The permittee shall:

- (1) Pay major source annual **actual based emission fees** for each annual accounting period (AAP) by January 31 of each year.
- (2) Prepare an actual emissions analysis in accordance with the above Fee Emissions
  Summary Table for each AAP (January 1 through December 31 of each year). The actual emissions analysis shall include:
  - (a) the completed Fee Emissions Summary Table,
  - (b) each AEAR required by the above Fee Emissions Summary Table, and
  - (c) the record required by B4(b) of this permit. These records shall be used to complete the **AEARs** required by the above **Fee Emissions Summary Table**.
- (3) Submit the actual emissions analysis at the time the fees are paid in full.
- (4) Calculate the fee due based upon the **actual emissions analysis**, and submit payment by January 31 following the end of the **annual accounting period**. If any part of any fee is not paid within fifteen (15) days of the due date, penalties shall at once accrue as specified in KCAQMR 25.8-H. Major sources may request an extension of time to file their emissions analysis with the Director.

Payment of the fee due and the actual emissions analysis shall be submitted to the Department at the following address.

Knox County Department of Air Quality Management 140 Dameron Avenue Knoxville, TN 37917

### **B2.** Emission Limits

None

### **B3. Operating Restrictions**

None

### **B4. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements**

None

### **B5. Reporting Requirements**

- (a) Semi-annual reports shall be submitted to the Department (at the address specified in permit condition B5(b)) by July 31<sup>st</sup> and January 31<sup>st</sup> of each year covering the time period from January 1<sup>st</sup> through June 30<sup>th</sup> and July 1<sup>st</sup> through December 31<sup>st</sup>, respectively. The semi-annual report shall include the following:
  - (1) Any monitoring and recordkeeping required by permit conditions C3(a), C3(b), and C3(c) However, a summary report of this data is acceptable provided there is sufficient information to enable the Department to evaluate compliance.
  - (2) Identification of all instances of deviations from any permit requirements.

These reports shall contain a certification by a responsible official that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, that the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1.c(3)(a))

- (b) Compliance certifications shall be submitted to the Department and EPA (at the addresses specified below) by January 31<sup>st</sup> of each year for the previous calendar year. The compliance certifications shall include the following:
  - (1) The identification of each term or condition of the permit that is the basis of the certification;
  - (2) The compliance status;
  - (3) Whether compliance was continuous or intermittent;
  - (4) The method(s) used for determining the compliance status of the source, currently and over the reporting period consistent with the required monitoring; and
  - (5) Such other facts as the Department may require to determine the compliance status of the source.

<u>Department Address:</u>
Knox County Department of Air Quality Management
140 Dameron Avenue
Knoxville, TN 37917

EPA Address:
U.S. EPA Region 4
Air and EPCRA Enforcement Branch
61 Forsyth Street, SW
Atlanta, GA 30303

These reports shall contain a certification by a responsible official that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, that the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-E.4 and Section 25.70-F.3)

(c) An annual emission report, as prescribed by the Director, shall be submitted to the Department by March 31<sup>st</sup> of each year for the previous year (January 1<sup>st</sup> through December 31<sup>st</sup>) when the facility has actual emissions of 25 tons per year or greater of nitrogen oxides or volatile organic compounds. (KCAQMR Section 26.5-C)

### **B6. Testing Requirements**

None

### **B7. Miscellaneous Requirements**

- (a) Locally enforceable only. No person shall cause, suffer, allow, or permit open burning of any kind except as specifically permitted in the Knox County Air Quality Management Regulation Section 16.0. (KCAQMR Section 16.0)
- (b) **Locally enforceable only.** Visible emissions from any single source shall not exceed an opacity of 20 percent for a six (6) minute average, except opacity emissions from roads and parking areas. (KCAQMR Section 17.1)
- (c) Locally enforceable only. No person shall cause, suffer, or allow any emissions of gases, vapors, or "objectionable" odors beyond the property line from which such emissions occur to be in sufficient quantities and of such characteristics and duration as to be injurious, or tend to be injurious, to human health and welfare, plant or animal life, or to property, or which unreasonably interferes with the enjoyment of life or property. (KCAQMR Section 21.0)
- (d) Unless otherwise specified, the averaging times for the applicable emission and/or opacity limit in this permit are tied to or based upon the run time of the test methods used for determining compliance. (KCAQMR Section 25.70-F.1)



### Section C. Emission Group 001 (Bread and Bun Baking Operations) Specific Conditions

The following table lists the permitted sources within Emission Group 001.

| Emission<br>Unit # | Source(s)                                     | Control(s) |
|--------------------|---|------------|
| 001-01             | 4.985 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Bread Oven | None       |
| 001-02             | 4.345 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Bun Oven   | None       |
| 001-03             | Oven Conveyor Chain Lubricant                 | None       |

#### C1. Emission Limits

- (a) Emissions of particulate matter (TSP) from emission unit 001-01 (bread oven) shall not exceed 9.69 lbs/hr. (KCAQMR Section 19.2-A)
- (b) Emissions of particulate matter (TSP) from emission unit 001-02 (bun oven) shall not exceed 7.30 lbs/hr. (KCAQMR Section 19.2-A)
- (c) Emissions from emission units 001-01 and 001-02 (bread and bun ovens) shall not exceed the following emission limits:

| Emission<br>Unit # | Source(s)  | SO <sub>2</sub><br>(lb/hr) | CO<br>(lb/hr) | NOx<br>(lb/hr) |
|--------------------|--|----------------------------|---------------|----------------|
| 001-01             | 4.985 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane<br>Bread Oven | 0.082                      | 0.41          | 0.71           |
| 001-02             | 4.345 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Bun<br>Oven   | 0.071                      | 0.36          | 0.62           |

The above emission limits are based on AP 42 (Fifth Edition) Tables 1.4-1 & 1.4-2 emission factors for small boilers, AP 42 (Fifth Edition) Table 1.5-1 for commercial boilers, and the maximum rated heat input listed in the permit application. (KCAQMR Section 19.3-B)

- (d) Emissions of VOC from emission unit 001-01 (bread oven) shall not exceed 147.55 tons during any consecutive 12-month period. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)
- (e) Emissions of VOC from emission unit 001-02 (bun oven) shall not exceed 94.82 tons during any consecutive 12-month period. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)
- (f) Emissions of VOC from emission unit 001-03 (oven conveyor chain lubricant) shall not exceed 2.38 tons during any consecutive 12-month period. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)

### **C2.** Operating Restrictions

- (a) The production of baked bread by emission unit 001-01 (bread oven) shall be limited to 43,460 tons during any consecutive 12-month period. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)
- (b) The production of baked bun by emission unit 001-02 (bun oven) shall be limited to 24,743 tons during any consecutive 12-month period. KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)
- (c) The owner or operator shall only use natural gas and propane as a fuel for emission units 001-01 and 001-02 (bread and bun ovens). (KCAQMR Section 25.3-F and permit application)
- (d) The consumption of oven conveyor chain lubricant by emission unit 001-03 (oven conveyor chain lubricant) shall be limited to 625 gallons/year. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)

(e) The owner or operator shall only use oven conveyor chain lubricant with a maximum VOC content of 7.61 lbs/gallon. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-I)

### C3. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements

- (a) The owner or operator shall keep a record of the monthly and 12-month rolling total tons of baked bread and buns produced by emission units 001-01 and 001-02 (bread and bun ovens). The data must be entered into the record no later than thirty (30) days from the end of the month for which the data is required. This record shall be kept for at least five (5) years from the date of last entry and be readily available for inspection or submittal to the Department. (KCAQMR Section 26.5-B)
- (b) The owner or operator shall keep a record of the monthly and 12-month rolling total tons of VOC emitted from emission units 01-01 and 01-02 (bread and bun ovens). The VOC emission factors for the baked bread and buns shall be included in the record and be calculated using the following formula.

$$EF_{VOC} = (0.95)Yi + (0.195)ti - (0.51)S - (0.86)ts + 1.90$$

Where:  $EF_{VOC}$  = Pounds VOC per ton of baked bread or bun

Yi = initial baker's percent of yeast
 ti = total yeast action time in hours
 S = final (spike) baker's percent of yeast

ts = spiking time in hours

The data must be entered into the record no later than thirty (30) days from the end of the month for which the data is required. This record shall be kept for at least five (5) years from the date of last entry and be readily available for inspection or submittal to the Department. (KCAQMR Section 26.5-B)

(c) The owner or operator shall keep a record of the monthly and 12-month rolling total consumption of oven conveyor chain lubricant in gallons. This record shall include the VOC content of the oven conveyor chain lubricant in lbs/gallon. The data must be entered into the record no later than thirty (30) days from the end of the month for which the data is required. This record shall be kept for at least five (5) years from the date of last entry and be readily available for inspection or submittal to the Department. (KCAQMR Section 26.5-B)

### **C4. Reporting Requirements**

- (a) A written report containing the details of any exceedance of permit conditions C1.(d), C1.(e), C1.(f), C2.(a), C2.(b), or C2.(d) shall be submitted to the Department within one week of the exceedance. (KCAQMR Section 26.5-B)
- (b) An annual emission report, as prescribed by the Director, shall be submitted to the Department by March 31<sup>st</sup> of each year for the previous year (January 1<sup>st</sup> through December 31<sup>st</sup>) when the facility has actual emissions of 25 tons per year or greater of nitrogen oxides or volatile organic compounds. (KCAQMR Section 26.5-C.1)
- (c) When a malfunction of equipment causes emissions in excess of any applicable emission limit, the owner or operator shall notify the Department within 24 hours of the malfunction and provide a statement giving all pertinent facts, including the duration of the malfunction. The owner or operator shall notify the Department when the malfunction has been corrected. (KCAQMR Section 34.0)

### **C5. Testing Requirements**

None

**C6. Miscellaneous Requirements** 

None

### Section D. Emission Group 002 (Flour Storage Silos) Specific Conditions

The following table lists the permitted sources within Emission Group 002.

|   | Emission<br>Unit # | Source(s)                     | Control(s) |
|---|--------------------|-------------------------------|------------|
|   | 002-01             | 200,000 lb Flour Storage Silo | Baghouse   |
|   | 002-02             | 200,000 lb Flour Storage Silo | Baghouse   |
| ſ | 002-03             | 75,500 lb Flour Storage Silo  | Baghouse   |

### **D1. Emission Limits**

(a) Emissions of particulate matter (TSP) from emission units 002-01 through 002-03 (flour storage silos) shall not exceed 0.25 gr/dscf of stack gases. (KCAQMR Section 19.6-B)

### **D2. Operating Restrictions**

(a) The owner or operator shall not operate emission units 002-01 through 002-03 (flour storage silos) unless the associated baghouse is in operation. (KCAQMR Section 25.3-F and permit Application)

### D3. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements

None

### **D4. Reporting Requirements**

None

### **D5. Testing Requirements**

None

### **D6. Miscellaneous Requirements**

None

### Section E. Emission Group 003 (Natural Gas/Propane Boilers) Specific Conditions

The following table lists the permitted sources within Emission Group 003.

| Emissic<br>Unit # | Source(s)                                | Control(s) |
|-------------------|--|------------|
| 003-03            | 5.23 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Boiler | None       |
| 003-03            | 6.30 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Boiler | None       |

### **D1. Emission Limits**

- (a) Emissions of particulate matter (TSP) from emission unit 003-01 (5.23 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Boiler) shall not exceed 0.6 lb/MMBtu (per hour). (KCAQMR Section 18.2-A)
- (b) Emissions of particulate matter (TSP) from emission unit 003-02 (6.30 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Boiler) shall not exceed 0.6 lb/MMBtu (per hour). (KCAQMR Section 18.2-A)
- (c) Emissions from emission unit 03-01 (boiler) shall not exceed the following emission limits:

| Emission<br>Unit # | Source(s)                                | SO <sub>2</sub><br>(lb/hr) | CO<br>(lb/hr) | NO <sub>x</sub><br>(lb/hr) | VOC<br>(lb/hr) |
|--------------------|--|----------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|----------------|
| 003-01             | 5.23 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Boiler | 0.086                      | 0.43          | 0.74                       | 0.057          |
| 003-02             | 6.30 MMBtu/hr Natural Gas/Propane Boiler | 0.10                       | 0.52          | 0.90                       | 0.069          |

The above emission limits are based on AP 42 (Fifth Edition) Tables 1.4-1 & 1.4-2 emission factors for small boilers, AP 42 (Fifth Edition) Table 1.5-1 for commercial boilers, and the maximum rated heat input listed in the permit application. (KCAQMR Section 19.3-B)

### **D2. Operating Restrictions**

(a) The owner or operator shall only use natural gas and propane as a fuel for emission unit 03-01 (boiler). (KCAQMR Section 25.3-F and permit application)

### D3. Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements

None

### **D4. Reporting Requirements**

None

### **D5. Testing Requirements**

None

### **D6. Miscellaneous Requirements**

None

# **ATTACHMENT A: Insignificant Activities**

- (a) Printing Inks
- (b) Parts washer

